STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES

Date: Monday, 13 July 2020 Time: 6.30pm Place: Virtual (via Zoom)

Present: Councillors: Simon Speller (Chair), Maureen McKay (Vice Chair), Doug Bainbridge, Sandra Barr, Laurie Chester, Michael Downing, Michelle Gardner, Jody Hanafin, Lizzy Kelly, Graham Lawrence, John Lloyd, Graham Snell and Tom Wren

Start / End	Start Time:	6.30pm
Time:	End Time:	7.00pm

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no apologies for absence.

There were no declarations of interest.

2 **MINUTES - 18 JUNE 2020**

It was **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Development Committee held on 18 June 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

3 19/00123/FPM - LAND TO WEST OF A1(M) AND SOUTH OF STEVENAGE ROAD, TODDS GREEN STEVENAGE

The Committee considered an application for the erection of 133 dwellings with associated amenity and open space provision, landscaping and access.

The Principal Planning Officer gave an introduction to the Committee. This application was originally determined by the Planning and Development Committee on 16 December 2019. The application was granted planning permission by the Committee subject to the completion of a S.106 legal agreement. Due to the global Covid-19 pandemic and the subsequent lockdown, the legal agreement could not be completed before the 1st April 2020 which is when the Council adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The application was referred back to Planning Committee for determination as the financial obligations to be secured as part of the legal agreement had changed.

Officers advised that since there was no fundamental difference between the current application and the previously approved application, the Council was not obliged to re-consult. However, officers had written to all those who had previously raised objections to the development. No additional public representations had been

received since the previous determination of the application.

With regards to bus service provision in the area, officers confirmed that the developer has agreed a financial contribution to fund an extra bus and to subsidise the operation of the service.

Officers provided clarification on Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) money and Section 106 contributions. CIL money does not need to be used for providing infrastructure on the site it is collected from. As a result of this SBC and Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) would no longer be seeking CIL money for previously identified projects such as open outdoor sport, delivery of new secondary school, expansion of Mossbury Primary School and the enhancement of library services. Officers informed the Committee that due to the adoption of CIL, there would be a net £13,000 increase in developer contributions for this particular project.

Officers confirmed that CIL contributions could be sought for identified projects, such as GP provision, that were required for any particular site. HCC, SBC internal departments such as Stevenage Direct Services (SDS) and other partners would still continue to seek contributions for any infrastructure which was directly required as a result of a development through section 106. Section 106 agreements would remain alongside CIL but would be restricted to that infrastructure required to directly mitigate the impact of a proposal. Officers indicated that the Planning and Development Committee would oversee the pooled CIL funds. Providers such as HCC and SDS would be able to submit funding bids for infrastructure projects.

It was **RESOLVED**:

- 1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the applicant having first entered into a S106 agreement to secure/provide contributions towards:-
 - The provision of 30% affordable housing;
 - Biodiversity improvement works and maintenance to Fishers Green Common;
 - Sustainable Transport and Infrastructure contribution;
 - Travel Plan contribution;
 - Trees and plants from UK nurseries;
 - Secure the provision and on-going maintenance of the play areas;
 - Secure the provision of a maintenance company for the development;
 - GP Provision;
 - Provision of fire hydrants; and
 - Associated Section 278 Highway Works.

The detail of which would be delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning and Regulation in liaison with the Council's appointed solicitor.

- 2 The proposal be subject to the following conditions:-
 - 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance

with the following approved plans:

SO01D; SO02 A; SO03; SK01 G; SK02; SK03 D; SK04 D; SK05 D; SK06 D; SK06.1; SK06.2; SK07 A; SK07.1; SK08; SK20 B; SK21 B; SK22 A; SK23 A; SK24 B; SK25 B; SK26 C; SK27 C; SK28 C; SK29 A; SK30 B; SK31 B; SK32 B; SK33 B; SK34 B; SK35 C; SK36 C; SK37 C; SK38 B; SK39 C; SK40 C; SK41 A; SK42 A; SK43 A; SK44 C; SK45 C; SK46 C; SK47 C; SK48 C; SK49 B; SK50 B; SK51 C; SK52 C; SK53 A; SK54 A; SK55 A; SK56 A; SK57 A; SK58 A; SK59 A; SK60 A; SK61; SK62; SK63; SK64 A; SK65 A; SK66 A; SK67; SK68, SK69 A; SK70; SK71 B; SK72 C; SK73 C; SK74 C; SK75 C; SK76 C; SK77; SK78; SK79; SK80; SK81; SK82; SK83; SK84; SK85; SK86; SK87; SK88; SK100; SK101; SK102; SK103; SK104; SK105; SK200A; SK201A; SK202A; SK203B; SK204B; SK205.1A; SK205.2A; SK206B; SK207B; SK208B; SK209A; SK210A; SK211B; SK212B; SK213.1A; SK213.2A; SK214A; SK215B; SK216B; LC 00331 01 G.

- 2 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
- 3 No development, above slab level, shall commence until a schedule and sample of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 4 No development, above slab level, shall take place until details of all boundary treatment which includes walls, fences or other means of enclosure, including any retaining walls, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Council as the Local Planning Authority. The boundary treatment, including any retaining wall, shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, the hereby approved boundary treatment(s) shall be permanently retained and maintained.
- 5 No demolition or construction work relating to this permission shall be carried out on any Sunday, Public or Bank Holiday nor at any other time, except between the hours of 0730 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0830 and 1300 on Saturdays, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These times apply to work which is audible at the site boundary.
- 6 No removal of trees, scrubs or hedges shall be carried out on site between 1st March and 31st August inclusive in any year, unless a preworks survey of the vegetation to be removed and surrounding vegetation, is undertaken immediately prior to removal by a suitable qualified, and approved confirmed by the local planning authority.
- 7 No development shall take place until a scheme for protecting the

proposed dwellings from noise from road traffic has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall follow the recommendations identified in the BWB Noise Impact Assessment report (Ref: MCP2136) dated February 2019. None of the dwellings shall be occupied until such a scheme has been implemented in accordance with the approved details, and shown to be effective, and it shall be retained in accordance with those details thereafter.

- 8 No properties shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either all wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows from the development have been completed or a housing and infrastructure phasing plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water to allow additional properties to be occupied. Where a housing and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed housing and infrastructure phasing plan.
- 9 The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-YE-0001_FRA dated February 2019; Sustainable Drainage Statement carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-CD-0001_SDS dated February 2019 and Technical Note carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-YE-0002_TN Revision P02 S2 dated 28 June 2019 and the following mitigation measures:-
 - Limiting the surface water run-off generated by the 1 in 100 year + 40% allowance for climate change event critical storm so that it will not exceed the run-off from the undeveloped site and not increase the risk of flooding off-site.
 - 2. Provide attenuation to ensure no increase in surface water runoff for all rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year + 40% allowance climate change event.
 - 3. Implement drainage strategy as indicated on the drainage strategy drawing reference TGS-BWB-XX-ZZ-DR-CD-0004 and TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-CD-DR-0006 and to include above ground SuDS features.
 - 4. Implemented drainage strategy to include daylighting of northern culvert with online detention basin with low flow channel for existing watercourses with detention basin as indicated on drawing TGS-BWB-XX-ZZ-DR-CD-0004.
 - 5. Implement drainage strategy to incorporate the central watercourse with detention basin indicated on drawing TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-CD-DR-0006.

- 10 The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-YE-0001_FRA dated February 2019; Sustainable Drainage Statement carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-CD-0001_SDS dated February 2019 and Technical Note carried out by BWB reference TGS-BWB-ZZ-XX-YE-0002_TN Revision P02 S2 dated 28 June 2019. The scheme shall also include:
 - 1. Detailed engineered drawings of the proposed SuDS features including their location, size, volume, depth and any inlet and outlet features including any connecting pipe runs and all corresponding calculations/modelling to ensure the scheme caters for all rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year + 40% allowance climate change event.
 - 2. Details regarding any areas of informal flooding (events those exceeding 1 in 30 years rainfall event), this should be shown on a plan with estimated extents and depths.
 - 3. Details of final exceedance routes, including those for an event which exceeds to 1:100 + 40% allowance climate change rainfall event.
 - 4. Details relating to the works to be carried out on the ordinary watercourses.

The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

- 11 Upon completion of each phase of the drainage works, a complete set of as built drawings for the site drainage management should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall also include:
 - 1. Final confirmation of management and maintenance requirements
 - 2. Provision of complete set of as built drawings for both site drainage and overland flow route management
 - 3. Details of any inspection and sign-off requirements for completed elements of the drainage systems.
- 12 Prior to the commencement of development, above slab level, a landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and be approved in writing by the local planning authority. The content of the LEMP shall deliver the ecological units to achieve no net

loss or where possible net gain to biodiversity and include the following:-

- a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed from a landscape and ecological perspective;
- b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management;
- c) Aims and objectives of management;
- d) Appropriate management options achieving landscape and ecological aims and objectives;
- e) Prescriptions for landscape and ecological management actions;
- Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled forward over a five year period) clearly marked on plans;
- g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan;
- h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measure. The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management body(ies) responsible for its delivery;
- I) Details of species specific measures as identified in the ecological report, definitively stated and marked on plans.

The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that the conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity and landscape objectives of the originally approved details.

The landscaping and habitats management scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

- 13 The bat and bird box strategy as detailed in the approved plans and ecological report shall be fully installed prior to first occupation of dwelling units 16; 18; 21 to 23; 25 to 32 to 41; 46; 48 to 50; 53; 55; 56; 69; 72; 73; 83; 85; 91; 95; 114 to 116; 118 and 124 hereby permitted. The bat and bird boxes shall be retained thereafter.
- 14 Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revising, revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no internal or external alterations shall take place to any garage, which would preclude its use for housing motor vehicles and/or bicycles unless permission is granted on an application made to the Local Planning Authority.
- 15 Prior to the commencement of development (including site clearance) a

Construction Management Plan/Method Statement for the construction phases shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the works of construction of the development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved statement and Hertfordshire County Council's specifications. The Demolition/Construction Management Plan/Method Statement shall address the following matters:-

- (i) Details of construction phasing programme (including any preconstruction enabling works);
- Hours of operations including times of deliveries and removal of waste which should avoid school pick up/drop off times;
- (iii) Demolition and construction works between the hours of 0730 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 0830 and 1300 on Saturdays only.
- (iv) The site set-up and general arrangements for storing plant including cranes, materials, machinery and equipment, temporary offices and other facilities, construction vehicle parking and loading/unloading and vehicle turning areas;
- Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists and other road users;
- (vi) Details of the provisions for temporary car parking during construction which shall be provided prior to the commencement of construction activities;
- (vii) The location of construction traffic routes to and from the site, details of their signing, monitoring and enforcement measures;
- (viii) Screening and hoarding;
- (ix) End of day tidying procedures;
- (x) Construction and storage compounds (including areas designated for car parking);
- (xi) Siting and details of wheel washing facilities;
- (xii) Cleaning of site entrances, site tracks and the adjacent public highway;
- (xiii) Control measures to manage noise and dust;
- (xiv) Disposal of surplus materials;
- (xv) Post construction restoration/reinstatement of the working areas

and access to the public highway.

- (xvi) Details of the access and highways works from Fishers Green to accommodate construction traffic.
- (xvii) Details of consultation and compliant management with local businesses and neighbours.
- (xviii) Mechanisms to deal with environmental impacts such as noise and vibration, air quality and dust, light and odour;
- (xix) Details of any proposed piling operations, including justification for the proposed piling strategy, a vibration impact assessment and proposed control and mitigation measures;
- (xx) Details of a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) detailing actual waste arising and how waste is managed (i.e. re-used, recycled or sent off site for treatment or disposal) and where it is sent to. Further updated should be provided throughout the life of the development at an interim of two months or sooner should the level of waste be considered significant by the developer.
- 16 In the event contamination is found during site clearance and/or construction phase of the development, the applicant must undertake an appropriate investigation and provide a remediation strategy which is to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This investigation and assessment must be undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. Moreover, it must include:

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
- woodland and service lines and pipes,
- adjoining land,
- groundwaters and surface waters,
- ecological systems.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition.

17 A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historic environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

- 18 The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
- 19 Prior to the first occupation of dwelling units 1 to 9; 25 to 32; 33 to 41 and 126 to 133 hereby permitted the approved refuse and recycle stores shall be constructed in accordance with the details submitted with this application and shall be permanently retained in the form.
- 20 Prior to the first occupation of dwelling units 1 to 9; 25 to 32; 33 to 41 and 126 to 133; hereby permitted the approved secure cycle parking areas and public cycle parking shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details submitted with this planning application and shall be permanently retained in that form thereafter.
- 21 No external lighting shall be installed on site unless details of such lighting, including the intensity of illumination and predicted light contours, have first been submitted to, and approved in writing the Local Planning Authority prior to first occupation of the development. Any external lighting shall accord with the details so approved.
- 22 The landscaping scheme as detailed in the approved drawings shall be implemented in the first available planting season prior to the first occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.
- 23 Any trees or plants comprised within the scheme of landscaping, which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 24 No development, including site clearance, shall commence until the trees as specified in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, prepared

by BWB (dated February 2019) to be retained on the site have been protected by fencing in accordance with the vertical tree protection fencing detailed in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment. In addition, all works which are to be undertaken within the Root Protection Areas of trees which are to be retained as specified on the aforementioned drawings shall be undertaken in accordance with the details specified in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment.

- 25 Within the areas to be fenced off in accordance with condition 24, there shall be no alteration to the ground levels and they shall be kept clear of vehicles, materials, surplus soils, temporary buildings and machinery.
- 26 Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, the measures to ensure the development is adaptable to climate changes as detailed in the Energy Statement (prepared by energist dated 15th February 2019) shall have been installed and implemented across the whole development in accordance with the approved details.
- 27 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, the vehicular accesses shall be provided and thereafter retained at the position shown on the approved in principle drawing number General Arrangement drawing number 17 941 SK01 revision G. The principal access road shall be provided 6.75 metres wide [except for some minor traffic calming features shown on the drawing] complete with 10.0 metres radius kerbs. Thereafter, the internal access roads connected to the principal access road shall be provided at least 5.5 metres wide completed with 8.0 metres radius kerbs to the specification of Hertfordshire County Council from the date of this permission and to the Local Planning Authority's satisfaction. Arrangement shall be made for surface water drainage intercepted and disposed of separately so that it does not discharge from on onto the highway carriageway.
- 28 No development shall take place until full details (in the form of scaled plans and written specifications) to illustrate the following:-

i) roads;

ii) footways;

iii) cycleways;

- iv) visibility splays;
- v) access arrangements;
- vi) parking provision in accordance with adopted standards;
- vii) bus stops;
- viii) turning area.

Have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details for i) to viii) shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

- 29 No development shall take place until a Servicing and Delivery Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Servicing and Delivery Plan shall contain the delivery and servicing requirements, waste collection points for the proposed development, a scheme for coordinating deliveries and servicing for the proposed development, areas within the development site that will be used for loading and manoeuvring of delivery and servicing vehicles, and circulation route and constructed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, the route shall be maintained in accordance with those approved details.
- 30 The provision of infrastructure both within the development site and on the wider routes that the proposed public transport service will travel to facilitate the delivery of the public transport strategy, shall comprise of, but is not limited to the following:-

1) high quality bus stop facilities to include raised height kerns and shelters;

2) real time information signs at key stops.

Details of future locations of all bus stops within the development site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development works. The bus stops will need to be clearly marked out on-site during construction of the internal road to ensure visibility for future residents and the wider community.

- 31 Upon first occupation of any dwelling, the provision of two vouchers per dwelling entitling the residents to 12 months free bus travel within the area travelling to Stevenage Town Centre covered by a PlusBus season ticket will be made available. Residents will be able to apply for the vouchers via a scheme to be outlined in the Travel Plan to be approved. The vouchers are to be valid for exchange during the first six months following the occupation of the respective dwelling unit.
- 32 A network of footways/cycleways linking all areas of the development with the railway station, bus station and Stevenage Town Centre, which shall include a toucan crossing along Fishers Green in an appropriate location close to the new junction, shall be provided prior to occupation of any dwelling. The route shall be detailed and identified on a drawing showing appropriate hard surfacing, illustrated with a minimum width of 2.0 metres where possible or shared use provision with a cycleway with a minimum width of 3.0 metre shall be submitted to, prior to the commencement of development above slab level, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The network of footways/cycleways shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.
- 33 Prior to the occupation of any dwellings, full details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the

proposed arrangements for the future management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the development. Following the provision of such streets in accordance with the approved details, the streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management and maintenance details until such time an agreement has been entered into under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a Private Management and Maintenance Company has been established in accordance with the approved details.

- 34 Prior to the commencement of the development, visibility splays measuring 2.4 metres x 53 metres to the north west and 2.4 metres x 54 metres to the south east shall be provided to each side of the main access onto Fishers Green and the visibility splays shall thereafter be maintained at all times free from any obstructions between 600mm and 2.0 metres above the level of the adjacent highway carriageway.
- 35 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, visibility splays measuring 2.4 metres x 43 metres shall be provided each side of each access where it meets the highway and such splays shall thereafter be maintained at all times free from any instructions between 600mm and 2.0 metres above the level of the adjacent highway carriageway.
- 36 Prior to the commencement of each phase of the development, details of all materials to be used for hardsurfaced areas, including roads, associated drainage details, driveways an car parking areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Each phase of the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 37 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, the gradient of the main access road shall not be steeper than 1 in 50 for the first 12m thereafter the main access and internal access roads shall not be not steeper than 1 in 20.
- 38 No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water to the ground are permitted other than with the written consent of the local planning authority. Any proposals for such systems must be supported by an assessment of the risks to controlled waters. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 39 Piling or any other foundation design using penetrative methods shall not be permitted within the development other than with the express consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 40 A scheme for managing any borehole installed within the development for the investigation of soils, groundwater or geotechnical purposes

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall provide details of how redundant boreholes are to be decommissioned and how any boreholes that need to be retained, post-development, for monitoring purposes with be secured, protected and inspected. The scheme as approved shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the Residential Development Plot.

41 Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes B and C of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revising, revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no loft conversions including dormer windows / roof extensions, or roof lights and openings shall be constructed on the dwellinghouse(s) hereby permitted unless permission is granted on an application made to the Local Planning Authority.

Pro-active Statement

Planning permission has been granted for this proposal. The Council acted pro-actively through positive engagement with the applicant at the pre-application stage and during the determination process which led to improvements to the scheme. The Council has therefore acted pro-actively in line with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) and in accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

INFORMATIVE

Hertfordshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority

Any works taking place within and/or over the culvert or within 3m of the top of the bank of the ordinary watercourse will require prior written consent from Hertfordshire County Council regardless of any planning permission. Any works proposed to be carried out that may affect the flow within an ordinary watercourse will require the prior written consent from the Lead Local Flood Authority under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991. This includes any permanent and or temporary works regardless of any planning permission.

Hertfordshire County Council as Highways Authority

AN1. Storage of materials: The applicant is advised that the storage of materials associated with the construction of this development should be provided within the site on land which is not public highway, and the use of such areas must not interfere with the public highway. If this is not possible, authorisation should be sought from the Highway Authority before construction works commence. Further information is available via the website:

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-roads-and-pavements/business-and-developer-information/development-

management/highways-development-management.aspx

AN2. Obstruction of public highway land: It is an offence under section 137 of the Highways Act 1980 for any person, without lawful authority or excuse, in any way to wilfully obstruct the free passage along a highway or public right of way. If this development is likely to result in the public highway or public right of way network becoming routinely blocked (fully or partly) the applicant must contact the Highway Authority to obtain their permission and requirements before construction works commence. Further information is available via the website: https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-roads-and-pavements/business-and-development-management.aspx

AN3. Road Deposits: It is an offence under section 148 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud or other debris on the public highway, and section 149 of the same Act gives the Highway Authority powers to remove such material at the expense of the party responsible. Therefore, best practical means shall be taken at all times to ensure that all vehicles leaving the site during construction of the development are in a condition such as not to emit dust or deposit mud, slurry or other debris on the highway. Further information is available via the website: https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-management/highways-development-management.aspx

AN4. Construction standards for works within the highway: The applicant is advised that in order to comply with this permission it will be necessary for the developer of the site to enter into an agreement with Hertfordshire County Council as Highway Authority under Section 38 and Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 to ensure the satisfactory completion of the access and associated road improvements. The construction of such works must be undertaken to the satisfaction and specification of the Highway Authority, and by a contractor who is authorised to work in the public highway. Before works commence the applicant will need to apply to the Highway Authority to obtain their permission and requirements. Further information is available via the website noted below:

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-roads-andpavements/business-and-developer-information/developmentmanagement/highways-development-management.aspx

AN5. Rights of Way

Before commencement of the proposed development, the applicant shall contact Hertfordshire County Council's Rights of Way Service <u>http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/envplan/countrysideaccess/row/</u> (Tel: 0300 123 4047, email at row@hertfordshire.gov.uk) to obtain their requirements for the ongoing maintenance of the surface of the Public Right of Way that routes through the site along the proposed development.

Reason: To ensure the surface of the Public Right of Way does not deteriorate as a result of an increase in vehicle movements using the access,

in the interests of pedestrian safety on a Public Right of Way.

The Public Right of Way should remain unobstructed by vehicles, machinery, materials, tools and any other aspects of the construction during works.

The safety of the public using the route and any other routes to be used by construction traffic should be a paramount concern during works, safe passage past the site should be maintained at all times.

The condition of the route should not deteriorate as a result of these works. Any adverse effects to the surface from traffic, machinery or materials (especially overspills of cement & concrete) should be made good by the applicant to the satisfaction of this Authority.

All materials should be removed at the end of the construction and not left on the Highway or Highway verges.

If the above conditions cannot reasonably be achieved, then a Temporary Traffic Regulation Order would be required to close the affected route and divert users for any periods necessary to allow works to proceed. A fee would be payable to Hertfordshire County Council for such an order.

Reason: To ensure the surface of the Public Right of Way does not deteriorate as a result of an increase in vehicle movements using the access, in the interests of pedestrian safety on a Public Right of Way.

Arboricultural Impact

Although the Arboricultural Impact Assessment mentions the need for an arboriculturalist if any large roots are encountered, it is suggested the whole section of the fence near the tree line should be supervised. Also, as this this type of work could potentially weaken the root system and therefore, the trees stability, it is also suggested a Highways England inspector would want to be aware of this matter. This also applies to the aerial part of the tree as considerable amount of their crowns would have to be cut back to accommodate the installation of the high fence.

Cadent Gas

Affected Apparatus

The apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result it is highly likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity).

Requirements BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance

documents and maps showing the location of apparatus.

Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe Cadent and/or National Grid's legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local authority should be contacted.

Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near Cadent and/or National Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 – 'Avoiding Danger from Underground Services' and GS6 –

'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This guidance can be downloaded free of charge at <u>http://www.hse.gov.uk</u>

In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables, services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

https://www.nationalgrid.com/sites/default/files/documents/24410-Excavating%20Safely%20Leaflet%20Gas.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document: <u>http://www2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=858993498</u> 2

General Guidance document: <u>http://www2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=35103</u>

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card): <u>https://www.nationalgrid.com/sites/default/files/documents/24413-</u> <u>Excavating%20Safely%20Credit%20Card%20Gas.pdf</u>

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card): <u>https://www.nationalgrid.com/sites/default/files/documents/24414ExcavatingS</u> <u>afelyCreditCardElectricity.pdf</u>

Community Infrastructure Levy

Stevenage Borough Council adopted a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule at Full Council on 27 January 2020 and started implementing CIL on 01 April 2020.

This application may be liable for CIL payments and you are advised to contact the CIL Team for clarification with regard to this. If your development

is CIL liable, even if you are granted an exemption from the levy, please be advised that it is a requirement under Regulation 67 of The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) that CIL Form 6 (Commencement Notice) must be completed, returned and acknowledged by Stevenage Borough Council before building works start. Failure to do so will mean you risk losing the right to payment by instalments and a surcharge will be imposed. NB. please note that a Commencement Notice is not required for residential extensions if relief has been granted.

Stevenage's adopted CIL Charging Schedule and further details of CIL can be found on the Council's webpages at <u>www.stevenage.gov.uk/CIL</u> or by contacting the Council's CIL Team at <u>CIL@Stevenage.gov.uk</u>.

4 INFORMATION REPORT - DELEGATED DECISIONS

Noted.

5 INFORMATION REPORT - APPEALS/CALLED IN APPLICATIONS

Noted.

6 URGENT PART I BUSINESS

The Assistant Director (Planning and Regulation) updated the Committee on scheduled training sessions. Members were informed that a session covering the Community Infrastructure Levy would be held at the end of the next Committee meeting on 11 August 2020. The Assistant Director advised Members to submit questions in advance.

7 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Not required.

8 URGENT PART II BUSINESS

None.

<u>CHAIR</u>